
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

June 8, 2015 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Danny Rary, Police Chief 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Approval of Minutes – May 28, 2014 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business  

9. Resolution Number 4716  - Annexation – 90-Day – Altadena Valley Country Club 
property located in Jefferson and Shelby Counties adjacent to Acton Road  (public 
hearing) 

New Business  

10. Resolution Number 4718 – Alcohol License – Turner Food Systems, LLC D/B/A Turner 
Food Systems, For A 150 – Special Events Retail License At 4700 Sicard Hollow Road; 
Donna And Trenton Turner, Executives 

11. Resolution Number 4719 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ALDOT For Jefferson County Project Number 
STPBH-3715(242); Resurfacing Various Eligible Roads/Streets In Jefferson County   

12. Resolution Number 4720 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

13. Resolution Number 4724 – A Resolution Granting A Power Easement Adjacent To 
Vestavia Hills Elementary School-Cahaba Heights 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

14. Ordinance Number 2570 - An Ordinance Finding And Determining That Real Property 
Being Vacant Property Situated At 2253 Great Rock Road, Is Not Needed For Public Or 



Municipal Purpose And To Authorize And Direct The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement For The Exclusive Listing To Sell Said Property  (public 
hearing) 

15. Resolution Number 4721 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 
And Deliver First Amendment To Sales Contract For Property On Old Columbiana Road   
(public hearing) 

16. Resolution Number 4722 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 
And Deliver A “Conditional Consent To Encroachment And Release Of Damages” With 
Jefferson County  (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Resolution Number 4723 – Annexation – 2308, 2312, and 2320 Rocky Ridge Road; Carl 
Schafer, Owner, Dan Sims, Taylor Burton, representing  (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2571 – Conditional Use approval for a home occupation at 4755 
Liberty Park Lane; Timothy and Robin York, Owners  (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2572 – Conditional Use approval for an automobile dealership at 
1475 Montgomery Highway; Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports, owner  (public 
hearing) 

20. Citizens Comments  
21. Executive Session 
22. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MAY 28, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp  
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Asst. Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Marvin Green, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Lori Beth Kearley, Asst. City Engineer 
 
 Invocation was given by Donald Harwell, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 
• Mr. Pierce welcomed Donnie Dobbins, Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce, to 

the meeting. 
• Mr. Henley welcomed Jennifer Brown, Alabama State Teacher of the Year for 

2015, to the meeting.  Ms. Brown thanked the Council for their support for the 
school system and spoke about her experience as a teacher. 

• The Mayor welcomed Katie Turpin, Editor-in-Chief of the Vestavia Voice who 
stated that several of her articles had been named for 2015 Press Association 
awards. 

 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 2 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes presented an article from AL.com which was a report from “Niche.” 
It listed Vestavia Hills as the number one suburb in their listing of 2015 
America’s Top Suburbs. 

• The Altadena Valley Country Club inspection period is scheduled to expire soon. 
The City is still investigating to determine issues which might affect development 
should the property be partially developed, with the remainder donated to the City 
for public use.  Mr. Downes stated that the annexation of the property is on the 
agenda to begin the annexation process and due diligence continues. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• The Mayor stated that Wing Ding is scheduled to begin Saturday.  He stated that 
Mr. Henley’s team has won the last two years and wondered if the trend would 
continue into a third year.  Proceeds go to Cystic Fybrosis. 

• The Mayor announced that the Council will need to move into executive session 
at the end of this meeting, but there’ll be no business to follow the session. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director presented the financial reports for the month 
of April 2015.  He read and explained the balances of the report. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of Approval of Minutes of May 11, 2014 (Regular Meeting) were 
presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of May 11, 2014 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – abstained  Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 3 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4713 
 
Resolution Number 4713 – Annexation – 90-Day – 74 +/- Acres Adjacent To The 

Cahaba River; Freshwater Land Trust, Owners  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4713 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Pierce gave a report from the Annexation Committee regarding this property.  
He stated that the location is north of Liberty Park and adjacent to the Cahaba River.  It 
will never be developed and is owned by the Freshwater Land Trust who is requesting the 
annexation. 
 
 Mr. Ammons asked about the canoe launch. 
 
 Ms. Leavings explained that this does not include the current canoe launch. 
 
 The Mayor asked about liability to the City if they put in a canoe launch and Mr. 
Boone stated that this is property owned by Freshwater, the City has no liability in it. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4714 
 
Resolution Number 4714 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Execute And 

Deliver An Employment Contract For The City Manager  (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4714 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 The Mayor explained that the two-year contract with Mr. Downes is set to expire 
soon and the Council wanted to extend a contract to complete this fiscal year and then 
begin into a three-year contract.  He stated that Mr. Boone has written the contracts and 
they are here to be approved by the Council to be extended to Mr. Downes for his 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 4 
 

consideration.  The Mayor indicated that Mr. Downes is a City employee and, therefore, 
is deserving of any and all COLAs that are awarded to employees. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that he has reviewed the contracts and he accepts the terms. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2495-A 
 
Ordinance Number 2495-A – An Ordinance Granting A 1-Year Extension For 

Conditional Use Approval For Construction Of A 120’ Stealth 
Monopole (Monopine) On The Property Located At 2062 Columbiana 
Road  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2495-A was by Mr. Sharp and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that construction of a monopine was approved for this location 
last year through a conditional use which expired in April.  The owner had lost funding 
for a few months but indicated the desire to extend the conditional use approval for an 
additional year because he believes the tower funding has been realized.  This request 
approves an additional year for construction. 
 
 Andrew Rotenstreich, attorney for the applicant, was present in regard to the 
request.  He explained the funding and the request for the additional year. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Jeremy Jones, 2043 Crestmont Drive, expressed concerns to damages of 
neighboring residences from failures in the soil and areas around the pole from the weight 
of the pole and asked about insurance requirements on the pole. 
 
 Mr. Rotenstreich stated that the carriers and owners have plenty of insurance but 
geotechnical testing of the areas of construction have shown that the soil is suitable for 
this pole.  He explained the engineering of the pole, etc. 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 5 
 

 Mr. Jones asked that the geotechnical reports be open for review to the public and 
that note be taken that the residents should have an option if damages occur following 
construction of the pole. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2568 
 
Ordinance Number 2568 - An Ordinance Granting Conditional Use For A Home 

Occupation At 7024 Lake Run Drive; David And Sandra Redden, 
Owners  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2568 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this request is for a home occupation at 7024 Lake Run 
Drive for a consulting business limited to several conditions which were detailed in the 
recommendation and the Ordinance. 
 
 Sandra Redden was present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2569 
 
Ordinance Number 2569 – An Ordinance Granting A Conditional Use For A Home 

Occupation At 917 Vestlake Hollow Circle; Regan Goldberg, Owner  
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2569 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 6 
 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this request is for a home occupation at 917 Vestlake 
Hollow Circle for a consulting business limited to several conditions which were detailed 
in the recommendation and the Ordinance. 
 
 Regan Goldberg was present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4715 
 
Resolution Number 4715 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As 

Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4715 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution declares an old truck as surplus and directs 
the sale of said truck. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4717 
 
Resolution Number 4717 – Alcohol License – 1st Annual Crawfish Boil Event; 

Jacquelins, Inc., For A 140 – Special Events Retail License In The 
Parking Lot Of 2531 Rocky Ridge Road (The Shops At Oak Park); 
Maria Adan, Executive 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4715 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 7 
 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for a special events license for a crawfish 
boil in the parking lot. 
 
 Brittany Carr, Manager of Jacquelins, explained the special event and stated that 
they hope this will be done annually.  She stated that she and the owner are both ABC 
certified and will be the ones responsible for service. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that the Police Department has had no reports of problems with 
the operation of this restaurant. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on June 8, 
2015 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4716  - Annexation – 90-Day – Altadena Valley Country 
Club property located in Jefferson and Shelby Counties adjacent to Acton Road 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor stated that the Council needed to move into executive session for an 
estimated 45 minutes for the sale/purchase of property and that there would be no 
business conducted following the session.  He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to move into executive session for an estimated 45 minutes for the 

purchase/sale of real estate was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 



City Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

Page 8 
 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   motion carried. 
 
 The Council exited the Chamber at 5:55 PM and entered into executive session.  
At 7:10 PM, the Council adjourned from executive session and entered into the Chamber.  
The Mayor called the meeting back to order. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Henley and second was by Mr. Pierce.  

Meeting adjourned at 7:11 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4716 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4716 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated May 21, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day of June, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 10th day of June, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of September, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4716 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4716 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

Altadena Valley Country Club 
Nall Partnership, LTD and Wesley L. Burnham, Jr., Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

PARCEL 1  
 
All that part of the following described property situated in the South V2 
of the Southeast ¼ of Section 33, Township 18, Range 2 West: 
 
A parcel of land located in the S 1/2  of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 33, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, and the Southwest 1/4 of the 
Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, all in 
Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows:  Begin 
at the Southeast corner of said Section 33, thence in a westerly direction 
along the south line of said Section 33, a distance of 1588.12 feet, thence 
41°10'15" right in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 159.10 feet; 
thence 94°26'22" right in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 163.65 
feet; thence 94°26'22" left in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 62.01 
feet; thence 71°49'10" right in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 
69.25 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a central angle of 
18°10'50" and a radius of 600.0 feet; thence in a Northeasterly direction 
along said curve, a distance of 190.39 feet to end of curve; thence in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 97.0 feet; thence 90° right in a 
Southeasterly direction a distance of 218.43 feet; thence 90° left in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 264.98 feet; thence 15°31' left in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 331.28 feet; thence 67°21'45" left in a 
Northwesterly direction a distance of 345.73 feet; thence 91°56'55" left in 
a Southwesterly direction a distance of 629.60 feet; thence 16°53'14" left 
in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 499.50 feet; thence 11°42'54" 
right in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 398.89 feet to the 
intersection with the south line of said Section 33, said point being 494.09 
feet East of the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1f4 of said Section 33; 
thence 48°49'45" right in a westerly direction along said south line of said 
Section 33 to the intersection with the Southeasterly right of way line of 
Acton Road; thence in a Northeasterly and Easterly direction along said 
right of way line until it intersects the Southwesterly right of way line of 
River Estates Road as shown on plat of River Estates and recorded in Map 
Book 53, Page 55, in the Office of the Judge of Probate in Jefferson 
County, Alabama; thence in a Southeasterly direction along said right of 
way of River Estates Road to the intersection with the south line of the 
Southwest l/4 of the Southwest l/4 of Section 34, Township 18 South, 
Range 2 West; thence 148°34' right in a westerly direction along the south 



Resolution Number 4716 
Page 3 

 
line of said 1/4 1/4 section, a distance of 417.20 feet to the point of 
beginning.  EXCEPT: The following 50 foot wide road right of way 
located in the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast l/4 of said Section 33; 
Commence at the Southwest corner of said Southwest 1/4 of Southeast 
1/4; thence in an easterly direction along the south line of said l/4 1/4 
section a distance of 494.09 feet; thence 48°49'45" left in a Northeasterly 
direction a distance of 398.89 feet to the point of beginning of herein 
described 50 foot wide road right of way, said point being the P.I. of a 
curve to the left, having a central angle of 35° and a tangent of 90.0 feet; 
thence 63°45'51" left in a Northwesterly direction along the tangent 
extended of said curve, a distance of 90.0 feet to the end of said curve; 
thence in a Northwesterly direction along the center line of said 50 foot 
wide road right of way to the intersection with the Southeasterly right of 
way of Acton Road, said point being end of herein described right of way. 
Situated in Jefferson County, Alabama. 
Less and Except any property conveyed to Jefferson County in Inst. No. 
9916-3899. 
 
PARCEL II 
 
A parcel of land located in the South half of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 
33, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, more particularly described as 
follows:   
 
Commence at the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 33, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West; thence in an easterly direction along 
the south line of said 1/4 section a distance of 494.09 feet; thence 
48°49'45" left in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 398.89 feet; thence 
11°42'54" left in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 499.50 feet to the 
point of beginning; thence 16°53'14" right in a Northeasterly direction a 
distance of 629.60 feet; thence 91°56'55" right in a Southeasterly direction 
a distance of 345.73 feet; thence 67°21'45" right in a Southwesterly 
direction a distance of 331.28 feet; thence 15°31' right in a Southwesterly 
direction a distance of 264.98 feet; thence 90° right in a Northwesterly 
direction a distance of 488.43' to the point of beginning.  Less and except 
any property conveyed to Jefferson County, Alabama in Inst. No. 
99163899. 
 
PARCEL III 
 
All that part of the following described property situated in the Southwest 
1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18, Range 2 West: 
 
A parcel of land located in the S 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 33, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, and the Southwest 1/4 of the 
Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, all in 



Resolution Number 4716 
Page 4 

 
Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows:  Begin 
at the Southeast corner of said Section 33, thence in a westerly direction 
along the south line of said Section 33, a distance of 1588.12 feet, thence 
41°10'15" right in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 159.10 feet; 
thence 94°26'22" right in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 163.65 
feet; thence 94°26'22" left in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 62.01 
feet; thence 71°49'10" right in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 
69.25 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right having a central angle of 
18°10'50" and a radius of 600.0 feet; thence in a Northeasterly direction 
along said curve, a distance of 190.39 feet to end of curve; thence in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 97.0 feet; thence 90° right in a 
Southeasterly direction a distance of 218.43 feet; thence 90° left in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 264.98 feet; thence 15°31' left in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 331.28 feet; thence 67°21'45" left in a 
Northwesterly direction a distance of 345.73 feet; thence 91 °56'55" left in 
a Southwesterly direction a distance of 629.60 feet; thence 16°53'14" left 
in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 499.50 feet; thence 11 °42'54" 
right in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 398.89 feet to the 
intersection with the south line of said Section 33, said point being 494.09 
feet East of the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 33; 
thence 48°49'45" right in a westerly direction along said south line of said 
Section 33 to the intersection with the Southeasterly right of way line of 
Acton Road; thence in a Northeasterly and Easterly direction along said 
right of way line until it intersects the Southwesterly right of way line of 
River Estates Road as shown on plat of River Estates and recorded in Map 
Book 53, Page 55, in the Office of the Judge of Probate in Jefferson 
County, Alabama; thence in a Southeasterly direction along said right of 
way of River Estates Road to the intersection with the south line of the 
Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18 South, 
Range 2 West; thence 148°34' right in a westerly direction along the south 
line of said 1/4 1/4 section, a distance of 417.20 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 
PARCEL IV 
 
A parcel of land located in the Northeast V4 of Section 4, Township 19 
South, Range 2 West, and the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of 
Section 3, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, all in Shelby County, 
Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the Northeast corner of Section 4, Township 19 South, Range 2 
West; thence in a westerly direction along the north line of said Section 4, 
a distance of 1588.12 feet; thence 48°49'45" left, in a Southwesterly 
direction a distance of 236.84 feet; thence 3°11'48" left in a Southwesterly 
direction a distance of 508.95 feet; thence 2°15'12" left in a Southwesterly 
direction a distance of 412.0 feet; thence 82°57' right in a Northwesterly 



Resolution Number 4716 
Page 5 

 
direction a distance of 79.0 feet; thence 30°51' left in a westerly direction 
a distance of 201.0 feet; thence 90° right in a northerly direction a distance 
of 258.0 feet; thence 37°57' right in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 
207.0 feet; thence 6°11'29" left in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 
379.33 feet; thence 11°35'29" right in a Northeasterly direction a distance 
of 170.11 feet to the intersection with the north line of said Section 4; 
thence 131°10'15" left in a westerly direction along the north line of said 
Section 4 to the intersection with the Southeasterly right of way line of 
Acton Road; thence in a Southwesterly direction along said right of way 
line to the intersection with the West line of the Northeast V4 of said 
Section 4; thence 33°37'45" left in a southerly direction along said West 
line of said Section 4, a distance of 1366,15 feet; thence 112°21'45" left, in 
a Northeasterly direction a distance of 494.18 feet; thence 12°05'15" right 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 683.44 feet; thence 11°49' left, in 
a Northeasterly direction a distance of 574.27 feet; thence 2°45'45" right 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 773.80 feet; thence 3°55'15" left 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 585.62 feet; thence 49°44'45" left 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 134.22 feet to the Southwest 
corner of Lot 39 River Estates, as recorded in Map Book 4, Page 27, in the 
Probate Office of Shelby County, Alabama; thence 112°53'30" left in a 
Southwesterly direction a distance of 203.96 feet; thence 145°53'30" right 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 345.0 feet to a point in the 
westerly line of said Lot 39; thence 33° left, in a Northeasterly direction 
along the westerly line of said Lot 39, a distance of 360.0 feet to the 
Northwest corner of said Lot 39, said point being the Southwesterly line of 
River Estates Road; thence 73°30' left in a Northwesterly direction along 
said Southwesterly line of River Estates Road, a distance of 83.45 feet to 
the intersection with the north line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 
1/4 of Section 3, Township 19 South, Range 2 West; thence 31°26' left in 
a westerly direction along the north line of said 1/4 1/4 section a distance 
of 417.20 feet to the point of beginning.  LESS AND EXCEPT that 
portion conveyed in Inst. No. 20020508000217420 and re-recorded in 
Inst. No. 20020710000318550 in the Probate Office of Shelby County, 
Alabama, more particularly described as follows:  That part of the 
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 4, Township 19 South, 
Range 2 West lying South and West of an unnamed tributary of Cahaba 
River: and that part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 4, 
Township 19 South, Range 2 West lying North and West of an unnamed 
tributary of Cahaba River, more particularly described as follows:  
Commence at the Southwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 
1/4 of Section 4, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, said corner being the 
point of beginning of the property herein described; thence run northerly 
along the west boundary of said 1/4 1/4 section a distance of 356.4 feet; 
thence turn an angle to the right of 125°02'25'; and run in a Southeasterly 
direction a distance of 219.6 feet; thence turn an angle to the right of 31 
°09'51" and run in a Southeasterly direction along the centerline of an 



Resolution Number 4716 
Page 6 

 
unnamed tributary of the Cahaba River a distance of 190.1 feet, more or 
less, to the centerline of an unnamed tributary of the Cahaba River; thence 
turn an angle to the right of 62°58'14" and run in a Southwesterly direction 
along the centerline of an unnamed tributary of the Cahaba River a 
distance of 406.0 feet, more or less, to the west boundary of the Southwest 
1/4 of the Northeast V4 of Section 4, Township 19 South, Range 2 West; 
thence turn an angle to the right of 140°49'30" and run Northerly along the 
West boundary of the Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 4, 
Township 19 South, Range 2 West, a distance of 258.4 feet, more or less, 
back to the point of beginning. 
 
All of said property lies in the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 
Southwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 4, Township 19 South, 
Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, Birmingham Division and in 
Shelby County, Alabama. 
 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Resolutioon Number 471
Page

16 
e 7 

 

 























 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4718 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR TURNER FOOD SYSTEMS, LLC D/B/A 
TURNER FOOD SYSTEMS; DONNA LEIGH 
TURNER AND TRENTON TURNER JR, 
EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Turner Food Systems, LLC d/b/a Turner Food Systems, located at 

4700 Sicard Hollow Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 150 - 

Special Retail License - 30 days or less; Donna Leigh Turner and Trenton Turner Jr, 

executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit A Resolution No. 4718



Exhibit A Resolution No. 4718



Exhibit A Resolution No. 4718



Exhibit A Resolution No. 4718





Resolution Number 4719 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4719 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALDOT FOR 
JEFFERSON COUNTY PROJECT NUMBER:  STPBH-3715(252); 
RESURFACING VARIOUS ELIGIBLE ROADS/STREETS IN 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as 

City) is desirous of having certain improvements made within the City Limits of Vestavia Hills, 

in accordance with plans prepared by the Alabama Department of Transportation and designated 

as Project Number: STPBH-3715(252) – Resurfacing Various Eligible Roads/Streets in Jefferson 

County. 

Site 3:  Columbiana Road from Gentilly Drive to the South End of Bridge 

over Shades Creek (Sheet-IC). 

WHEREAS, The Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be desirous 

of receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and  

 WHEREAS, The Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of 

America, will not participate in any funding for the construction of said project until and unless 

the City will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway Administration.  The City for 

the purpose of complying with requirements of the Federal Highway Administration in regard to 

its funding of improvements of the type and kind in this agreement provided for, does hereby 

pass and adopt the following resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Vestavia Hills that the plans of said project 

including alignment, profile, grades, typical sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City 

and which are now on file in the office of the City Clerk are hereby approved and that the 

location of said project as staked out by the Alabama Department of Transportation and as 

shown by said plans referred to are hereby approved and the Alabama Department of 

Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration, is hereby authorized to 

proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and otherwise improving and construction of said 

project in accordance with said plans.  The City by and through its Council hereby grants to the 

Alabama Department of Transportation the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any 

existing streets for the construction of said project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the 

Alabama Department of Transportation to close and barricade the said project and intersecting 



Resolution Number 4719 
Page 2 

 
streets for as long as necessary while the said project is being graded, drained, paved, and 

otherwise improved, and hereby agrees that the use of any street or highway for parking within 

an interchange area will not at any time be permitted.  The City hereby further agrees to adopt or 

pass such legally effective ordinances and/or laws as will permanently barricade and/or relocate 

certain intersecting streets as required by the State and to permanently deny or limit access at 

certain locations as required by the State along said improvements, all of which are more 

specifically stated as follows:  

N/A- This project does not require permanent barricade or relocation of any intersection 

streets.  Please refer to:  Project Notes  

Please refer to:  Traffic Signal Plan Notes  

Please refer to:  Traffic Control Notes.   

Please refer to:  Sequence of Construction and Traffic Control Plan (Sheets21-2L) 

(Sheets2M-2P) (Sheets20-2V) (Sheets6-17) 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council, that for and in consideration of the 

Alabama Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Federal Highway 

Administration, constructing said highway and routing traffic along the same through the City 

over said project, such City hereby agrees with the Alabama Department of Transportation and 

for the benefit of the Federal Highway Administration, that on the above-mentioned project the 

City will not in the future permit encroachments upon the right-of-way;  nor will it pass any 

ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits provided for in Title 32, Chapter 

5, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor will it permit other than 

parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the placing of any 

informational, regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and pavement or 

other markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama Department of 

Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, of the location, form and character of 

such installations.  The traffic control devices and signs installed during construction, and those 

installed after completion of this project shall be in accordance with the latest edition of the 

national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and accepted standards adopted by the 

Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and by the Federal Highway 

Administration.  The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control devices deemed 

necessary by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations to promote the safe and 



Resolution Number 4719 
Page 3 

 
efficient utilization of the highway under the authority of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 

1975, and all other applicable laws of Alabama, shall be subject to and must have the approval of 

the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway 

Administration, prior to installation and the City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and 

control the same under the provisions of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and other 

applicable laws of Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by this City Council: 

1. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on crossroads, service drives, or 

relocated roads that are not designated Federal or State highways that are in the 

jurisdiction of the City. 

2. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on any existing road which has been 

replaced by a new road; or, if the existing road is not used, the City has the option of 

vacating same. 

3. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on interchanges to the theoretical 

crossing of the denied access line. 

4. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on grade separations along the 

roadway to the end of the bridge, or the denied access fence, whichever the case. 

It is understood and agreed that no changes in the Resolution or Agreement shall in the 

future be made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway 

Administration. 

This Resolution PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of June 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4719 
Page 4 

 
 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Jeffrey D. Downes,  
      City Manager 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, do hereby certify that the above 
and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and lawfully adopted by the 
Council of the foregoing City, at its regular meeting held on the 8th day of June, 2015 which 
resolution is on fiale in the Office of the City Clerk. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal of such City of Vestavia Hills this ________ day 
of ___________________ 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4720 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4720 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4720 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 8th day of June, 

2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4720



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4720



Resolution Number 4724 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4724 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ALABAMA POWER COMPANY A 
UTILITY EASEMENT FOR CONNECTION OF ELECTRICAL 
SERVICE  

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Alabama 

Power Company to grant an easement, right and privilege as described in said 

agreement (copy attached); and 

2. Resolution Number 4724 shall become effective immediately upon adoption 

and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4724



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4724



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4724



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4724



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4724



Ordinance Number 2570 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2570 
 

AN ORDINANCE FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT REAL 
PROPERTY (“THE PROPERTY”) BEING VACANT PROPERTY 
SITUATED AT 2253 GREAT ROCK ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA OWNED BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES; AND TO 
AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND 
DELIVER AN EXCLUSIVE LISTING AND AGENCY AGREEMENT FOR 
THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO SELL SAID PROPERTY. 
 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2570 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 8th  day of June, 2015. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is the owner of a parcel of land situated 

at 2253 Great Rocky Road in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama constituting 

approximately 0.39± acres, which said property is more particularly described as Lot 15, Block 

3, Southridge Addition and shall hereinafter be referred to as “the Property;” and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the Exclusive Right to Sell Property Listing and Agency 

Agreement (hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Agreement”) is attached hereto, marked 

as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as though set out fully herein; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds 

and determine that the Property above-described is not needed for municipal or public purposes; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of the Contract was considered at a public 

hearing held on Monday, June 8, 2015, at the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center located at 513 

Montgomery Highway in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m.; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and determines that 

the Property more particularly described above is not needed for municipal or public purposes. 

 2. A public hearing was held by the Vestavia Hills City Council on Monday, June 8, 

2015, at the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center located at 513 Montgomery Highway in the City of 



Ordinance Number 2570 
Page 2 

 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m to consider the enactment of this Ordinance, the 

execution and delivery of the Contract and the matters required to be considered. 

 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 

written Agreement marked as Exhibit A and attached hereto. 

 4. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 

holding. 

 5. The provision of the Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the 

passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and the 

publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 8th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2570 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2570 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 
8th day of June, 2015 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 































RESOLUTION NUMBER 4721 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER A CONTRACT WITH CONTINENTAL EQUITY 
CORPORATION REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY ON 
OLD COLUMBIANA ROAD 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a “First Amendment to 

Sales Contract” (“Contract”) by and between Continental Equity Company (“the Seller”) 

and City of Vestavia Hills (“the Purchaser”); and 

2. A copy of said Contract is attached to this Resolution Number 4721 marked as “Exhibit 

A” and incorporated as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4721 shall be effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO SALES CONTRACT 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT was executed as of June   6th    , 2015 by and between Continental Equity 
Corporation (the Seller) and City of Vestavia Hills (the Purchaser)  
 

RECITALS: 
 

Seller and Purchaser are parties to that certain Sales Contract dated February 23, 2015 
concerning the purchase and sale of the Property described therein. 

 
The parties have agreed to amend the Sales Contract on the terms and provisions hereinafter set 
forth. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of Purchaser depositing an additional Five Thousand and 
no/100 Dollars ($5,000.00) Earnest Money with Southpace Properties, Inc. (Escrow Holder) the 
Seller and Purchaser agree as follows: 
 
 Section 8 of the Contract is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
8. PURCHASER INSPECTION PERIOD: Within seven (7) days from the date this contract is accepted by all parties, 

Seller shall deliver to Purchaser all documents in Seller’s possession related to title and environmental matters, 
including any existing title policies, copies of any leases, surveys, environmental reports and the like. Purchaser 
shall have until September 1, 2015 (“Inspection Period”) to determine, either personally or through or with a 
representative of Purchaser’s choosing, any and all conditions of the Property (including without limitation the 
condition of all improvements thereon) material to Purchaser's decision to purchase the Property. This 
determination shall include, without limitation, Purchaser satisfying itself as to title matters, survey matters, 
structural matters, zoning matters, subdivision restrictions, environmental matters, existing contracts and financial 
matters affecting the Property, all soil, landscaping and other physical conditions of the Property, availability and 
sufficient quantities of all utilities, and all additional matters that Purchaser believes relevant, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, in determining whether or not to purchase the Property. Purchaser, at Purchaser’s sole 
discretion, for any reason or no reason, shall have the right and option to cancel this Contract by giving written 
notice of termination to Seller no later than the last day of the Inspection Period, in which event this Contract shall 
be of no further force or effect except for any indemnity or other obligations that expressly survive, and the Earnest 
Money ($10,000) shall be paid to Seller.  Purchaser shall coordinate all of its testing and investigations and its 
agents’ testing and investigations with Seller in order to insure the least amount of interference with Seller’s 
operations.  Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless against any claims for bodily injury, property 
damage and mechanics’ liens arising out of any actions of Purchaser or its agents or representatives on the 
Property in the course of such activities.  Purchaser also agrees to restore or repair any of the Property damaged 
or disturbed as a result of Purchaser’s exercise of its rights under this Agreement to as near as is reasonably 
possible the condition that existed immediately prior to the exercise of such rights.  Purchaser’s obligations to 
indemnify and hold Seller harmless under this paragraph shall survive Closing and any termination of this 
Agreement.  Purchaser’s obligation under this paragraph to restore the Property shall survive any termination of 
this Agreement, but shall not survive Closing. If Purchaser fails to notify Seller of his intent to cancel prior to the 
expiration of the Inspection Period then this contingency will be considered removed and the contract shall continue 
in full force and effect and the Earnest Money will remain “at risk” and will not be refunded in any event other than 
a default by Seller. 

 
Except as herby amended, the Sales Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4721



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed as of the date 
first shown above. 
 
 
     
 
       SELLER: Continental Equity Corporation  
 
 
                                                              By:                                                                                               
Witness to Seller’s Signature(s)   Its:                         
  
 
 
       PURCHASER: City of Vestavia Hills 
 
 
                                                              By:                                                                                                                                                  
Witness to Purchaser's Signature(s)  Its:  Mayor         
 
 
       By:                                                                                                                                                  
       Its:  City Manager       
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4721



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4722 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER A CONDITIONAL CONSENT TO ENCROACHMENT 
AND RELEASE OF DAMAGES 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a “Conditional Consent to 

Encroachment and Release of Damages” (“Consent”) by and between Jefferson County 

and City of Vestavia Hills; and 

2. A copy of said Consent is attached to this Resolution Number 4722 marked as “Exhibit 

A” and incorporated as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4722 shall be effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4722



 1

CHANGE WHAT IS IN RED ONLY AND IN RED 

 

CONDITIONAL CONSENT TO ENCROACHMENT 

AND RELEASE OF DAMAGES 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT made as of the _____ day of _______________, 20___, by 
and between JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA (the “County”) and CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS (the “Owner”). 
 
 
 

R E C I T A L S: 
 
 Owner is the owner of real property being the City of Vestavia Hills Fire Station 
and City Hall, located at 513 Montgomery Hwy Vestavia Hills, Al 35216, Parcel Id 
Number 28-00-19-3-012-001.000. 
 

Owner has installed Telephone Poles, Storm Sewer Structures, Curb and Gutter, 
Asphalt Paving, Power Poles, Fencing, Air Conditioning units, Building, Gas Meter, and 
a Block Wall over or adjacent to an existing sanitary sewer main falling within a 
Jefferson County sanitary sewer easement (as shown on Exhibit “A”, attached 

collectively, the “Improvements”), for the purpose of serving the Local Clients. Owner 
and County mutually desire to enter into this Agreement to address the encroachment 
of the Improvements within the Easement. 
 

 
 This is not the agreement but information needed for 
said agreement. The actual agreement will be inserted 
here once I get the information. 
 
                                                                  
 
 
 
 
       
 
City Of Vestavia Hills 
 
          By: _____________________________________ 
      Its: City Manager  
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4722



 2

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
    ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 

 I, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for said County in said State, hereby 
certify that ______________________________________, whose name as City 
Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is 
known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents 
of such instrument, he/she, as such City Manager and with full authority, executed the 
same voluntarily for and as the act of said Corporation. 
 
 Given under my hand and seal, this _____ day of _____________, 20___. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      NOTARY PUBLIC 
  [Notary Seal]    My Commission expires: _________________ 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4722



Items within proposed Sanitary Sewer Easement across the City of Vestavia Property, Parcel ID Number 

28-00-19-3-012-001.000, situated in the South 1/2 of Section 19 Township 18 South Range 2 West, 

Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Beginning at the Southeastern most part of the easement. 

Telephone Pole 

Storm Sewer Vertical Headwall 

Storm Sewer Pipe 

Curb and Gutter 

Asphalt Paved Parking Lot 

Under Ground Detention Pond 

Power Poles 

Fencing 

Air Conditioning Units 

Building (Fire Station) 

Gas Meter 

Block Wall  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4722



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4723 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 25, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day of June, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of June, 2015. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of September, 2015, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 2 

 
petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4723 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2308, 2312 & 2320 Rocky Ridge Road 
Wisteria II, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Parcel I.  A parcel of land located in Jefferson County, Alabama part of the SE 
1/4 of Section 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, said Jefferson County and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Begin at the SE corner of Lot 1-A, Block 8, of Hidden Valley 2nd Sector, as 
recorded in Map Book 63, Page 67, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of 
Jefferson County, Alabama; thence North along the East line of said Block 8, 
661.40 feet; thence 92 degrees 28 minutes 02 seconds right, in an Easterly 
direction along the Southerly line of Block 2 in the Second Sector of Derby 
Downs East Sector, as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 42 in said Probate Office 
and the extension thereof, a distance of 658.67 feet; thence 87 degrees 34 minutes 
09 seconds right in a Southerly direction, a distance of 125.02 feet; thence 81 
degrees 51 minutes 09 seconds left, Southeasterly 235.87 feet to a point in the 
Northwesterly right of way line of Rocky Ridge Road; thence 94 degrees 41 
minutes 06 seconds right, Southwesterly along said right of way line a distance of 
524.24 feet to the intersection with the Northerly right of way line of Wisteria 
Drive; thence 79 degrees 50 minutes 18 seconds right, Westerly along said right 
of way line a distance of 775.56 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Parcel II.  A parcel of land located in Jefferson County, Alabama and lying in the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 6, Township 19 South, 



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 3 

 
Range 2 West, said Jefferson County and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a 3" capped pipe found marking the Southwest Corner of the 
Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said 
Section 6; thence S 88°53'26" E for a distance of 267.95 feet to a 5/8" capped 
rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence along the westerly right-of-way of Rocky 
Ridge Road with a curve to the left having an arc length of 33.41 feet, a radius of 
985.31 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of S 12°30'03" W for 33.40 feet to a 
5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence S 11°31’47" W along said 
westerly right-of-way line for a distance of 117.67 feet to a capped iron pin found 
(CA-81-LS); thence leaving said westerly right-of-way line N 83°09'31" W for a 
distance of 235.97 feet to a 1/2" open top pipe found; thence N 01°18'45" W for a 
distance of 125.02 feet to the Point of Beginning. Said Described parcel of land 
contains 0.79 acres, more or less. 

Parcel III.  A parcel of land located in Jefferson County, Alabama and lying in the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 6, Township 19 South, 
Range 2 West, said Jefferson County and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a 3" capped pipe found marking the Southwest Corner of the 
Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said 
Section 6; thence N 01°23'01" W along the westerly line of said Quarter-Quarter-
Quarter for a distance of 354.66 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); 
thence leaving said westerly line and run along the southerly line of the lands of 
the City of Vestavia Hills as described and recorded in Deed Book 200509, Page 
8409 the following courses and distances: S 48°10'26" E for a distance of 190.78 
feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); along a curve to the left having 
an arc length of 45.90 feet, a radius of 28.00 feet, and a chord bearing and distance 
of N 84°52'00" E for 40.93 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); N 
37°54'26" E for a distance of 150.60 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 
19753); along a curve to the right having an arc length of 266.97 feet, a radius of 
260.70 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of N 67°14'39" E for 255.46 feet to 
a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753) on the northwesterly right-of-way line 
of Rocky Ridge Road; thence leaving said southerly line along said northwesterly 
right-of-way line with a curve to the left having an arc length of 142.77 feet, a 
radius of 995.31 feet, and a chord bearing and distance of S 39°15'06" W for 
142.65 feet to a 5/8" capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence along said 
northwesterly right-of-way line S 54°51'28" E for a distance of 10.00 feet to a 5/8" 



Resolution Number 4723 
Page 4 

 
capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence along said northwesterly right-of-way 
line with a curve to the left having an arc length of 372.66 feet, a radius of 985.31 
feet, and a chord bearing and distance of S 24°18'26" W for 370.44 feet to a 5/8" 
capped rebar set (SMW LS 19753); thence leaving said northwesterly right-of-
way line N 88°53'26" W for a distance of 267.95 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Said described parcel of land contains 2.62 acres, more or less. 
 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



-i:

\ Vestavla Hills
\ Jefferson County
| Mountain Brook
| Jeffco&Bham







Resolution Number 3824

Page 6

STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION TO THE

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

Date of Petition: February 25, 2015

To the Honorable MayorandCity Council of the Cityof Vestavia Hills, Alabama:

We, the undersigned owners of the properties set out in red outline in Exhibit "A" attached
hereto, which properties are contiguous to the City limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama,
under the authority of Act No. 32 of the Special Session of the Alabama Legislature of 1964, do
hereby petitionthe City ofVestavia Hills,Alabama, that the properties set out in red
outline in Exhibit "A" attached, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, be annexed
to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. The metes and bounds description of the boundary of the
property of the undersigned proposed to be annexed is also set out on said Exhibit "A" and a map
showing in red the property proposed for annexation by this petition is also attached and madea part
hereof.

The undersigned petitionersdo further petitionthat the Honorable Mayor and City Council of
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, set a date for the hearing of this petition and any objections in
writing to the petition or protest, on a date certain and that no less than ninety (90) days before said
date certain for said hearing on this petition, that a notice of said hearing along with this petition be
publishedin a newspaperofgeneral circulation in Jefferson County,Alabama.

We, the undersigned petitioners do also ask that the Honorable Mayor and City Council of
the Cityof Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do all things necessary andrequisite to comply with the termsof
Act No. 32 of the SpecialSessionof the AlabamaLegislature of 1964. This petition for annexationto
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is made contingent upon the approval of residential zoning for
the property, as requested by the applicant and the applicant's designated representatives, by
Vestavia Hills.



LOT: (METES and BOUNDS)

BLOCK:

SURVEY:

EXHIBIT "A"

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK, PAGE

PROBATE OFFICE OF

JEFFERSON COUNTY,

ALABAMA

COUNTY ZONING: Agricultural

COMPATIBLE CITY ZONING: Agricultural

LEGAL DESCRIPTION(METES AND BOUNDS):

SEE ATTACHED DESCRIPTION FOR PARCELS:

40-00-06-4-002-034.000

40-00-06-4-002-035.000

40-00-06-4-002-036.000

TOTAL OF 15.8 ACRES +/-

Resolution Number 3824
Page!



ADDENDUM "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, METES & BOUNDS 15.8 acres +/-
Petition for Annexation to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Carl A. Schaefer ,Jr.

Parcel 1

Partof the SE1/4 of Section 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, more particularly
described as follows:

Begin at the SE corner of Lot 1-A, Block 8, of Hidden Valley 2nd Sector, as recorded in
Map Book 63, Page 67, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama;
thence North along the Eastline of said Block 8,661.40 feet: thence92 degrees 28 minutes
02 seconds right, in an Easterly direction along the Southerly line of Block 2 in the Second
Sector of Derby Downs East sector, as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 42 in said Probate
Office and the extension thereof, a distance of 658.67 feet; thence 87 degrees 34 minutes
09 seconds right in a Southerly direction, a distance of 125.02 feet; thence 81 degrees 51
minutes 09 seconds left, Southeasterly 235.87 feet to a point in the Northwesterly right of
way line of Rocky Ridge Road; thence 94 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds right,
Southwesterly along said right of way line a distance of 524.24 feet to the intersection with
the Northerly right of way line ofWisteria Drive: thence 79 degrees 50 minutes 16 seconds
right, Westerly along said right of way line a distance of 775.56 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Parcel 2

Begin at the NW corner of the S1/2 of the NE1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 6, Township
19, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama; thence run East 302 feet, more or less,
to center of paved highway; thence run Southwest along center of paved highway 150
feet; thence run West 268 feet, more or less, to the West line of said 1/41/4 Section;
thence run North 125 feet to the point of beginning; being a part of the NE 1/4 of SE
1/4 ofSection 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.

Parcel 3

All that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6,
Township 19 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, that lies
North and West of Patton Chapel-Rocky Ridge Road and South of the center line
of a creek.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.



Cil i2015 Google -Map data $2015 Google Termaofltee Report amap erro<



Resolution Number 3824

Page?,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals, or
caused these presents to be executed by their duly authorized representatives, with full authority.

SIGNATURE(S) DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

)U>*~Jl Q. LXvJs ^J\—A Lot Block Survey ,5^^ A-rtA-a-HLP -M&Tti 4WIW&S

Lot Block Survey

Lot Block Survey

(Use reverse side hereoffor additional signatures andproperty descriptions, ifneeded).

STATE OF ALABAMA

COUNTYJhu>
C^dY[ /{•. K^CAMJU^rOC ^Sf being duly sworn says: I am one ofthe persons who

signed the above petition, and I certify that said petition contains the signatures of all the owners
of the described property.

La* -U. 4X
Signature ofCertifier

J5m oF*4faU4A*jSubscribed and sworn before me this the ,20/*.

Notary/Public

My commission expires: ^vjj / »&



ADDENDUM "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS, METES & BOUNDS 15.8 acres +/-
Petition for Annexation to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Carl A. Schaefer ,Jr.

Parcel 1

Part of the SE1/4 of Section 6,Township 19 South, Range 2West, more particularly
described as follows:

Begin at the SE corner of Lot 1-A, Block 8, of Hidden Valley 2nd Sector, as recorded in
Map Book 63, Page67, in the Officeof the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama;
thence North along the East line of said Blocks, 661.40 feet; thence 92 degrees 28 minutes
02 seconds right, in an Easterly direction along the Southerly line of Block 2 in the Second
Sector of Derby Downs East Sector, as recorded in Map Book 78, Page 42 in said Probate
Office and the extension thereof, a distance of 658.67 feet; thence 87 degrees 34 minutes
09 seconds right in a Southerly direction, a distance of 125.02 feet; thence 81 degrees 51
minutes 09 seconds left, Southeasterly 235.87 feet to a point in the Northwesterly right of
way line of Rocky Ridge Road; thence 94 degrees 41 minutes 06 seconds right,
Southwesterly along said right of way line a distance of 524.24 feet to the intersection with
the Northerly right of way line ofWisteria Drive: thence 79 degrees 50 minutes 16 seconds
right, Westerly along said right of way line a distance of 775.56 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Parcel 2

Begin at the NW comer of the S1/2 of the NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 6, Township
19, Range 2 West Jefferson County, Alabama; thence run East 302 feet more or less,
to center of paved highway; thence run Southwest along center of paved highway 150
feet thence run West 268 feet more or less, to the West line of said 1/41/4 Section;
thence run North 125 feet to the point of beginning; being a part of the NE 1/4 of SE
1/4 of Section 6, Township 19 South, Range 2 West Jefferson County, Alabama.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.

Parcel 3

All that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6,
Township 19 South, Range 2 West situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, that lies
North and West of Patton Chapel-Rocky Ridge Road and South of the center line
of a creek.

Less and except any portion of subject property lying within a road right of
way.



EXHIBIT "B"

Resolution Number 3824
Page 9

VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION
1204 Montgomery Highway

Vestavia Hills AL 35216

(Tobe completed bytheCity)

Action Taken: Grant

Date:

Date:

Date:

Number:

Number:

Number:

Deny

Date ofAnnexation Petition

Resolution:

Overnight Ordinance:
90 Day Final Ordinance:

(To be completed by Homeowner)

Name(s) of Homeowners): Carl A. Schaefer, Jr.

Address: 345 Industrial Lane

City: Birmingham State: Alabama

Information on Children;

Zip: 35211

Plan to Enroll In

Vestavia Hills School?

Name(s) Age School Grade Yes No

1. NONE(This property is currently 15.8 acres +/- of
vacant land)

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Approximate date forenrolling students in Vestavia Hills City Schools if above response is
"yes"





Ordinance Number 2571 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2571 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR A HOME OCCUPATION 

 
 WHEREAS, on October 16, 2000 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 1838 creating and establishing a 

P.U.D. (planned unit development) classification; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, Timothy and Robin York have submitted application for conditional 

use approval for a home occupation to be operated in the residence located at 4755 

Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Mr. and Ms. York have indicated in their application for conditional 

use approval that they will operate a consulting business out of their home pursuant to the 

specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated March 27, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2571. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Timothy and Robin York 

for a home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for 

their residence located at 4755 Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

located in Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions in Article 9 of the 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows: 

(1) “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and 

which use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to 

the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the 



Ordinance Number 2571 
Page 2 

 
character of the dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the 

neighborhood surrounding said dwelling. 

(2) Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation. 

(3) There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; no customer, client or employee traffic to, at or near 

the residence that is generated, directly or indirectly, by said home 

occupation.  There shall be no pickup or deliveries to the residences that 

are related to said home occupation whether directly or indirectly. 

(4) No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation. 

(5) No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned. 

(6) In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use. 

(7) Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones 

is expressly prohibited; and 

(8) The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM.” 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the property located at 

4755 Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park 

P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application 

and payment by Mr. and Mrs. York working to the rules and regulations 

outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be renewed 



Ordinance Number 2571 
Page 3 

 
each year that the home occupation is operated from the location at 4755 

Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Mr. and Ms. York vacate the premises located at 4755 

Liberty Park Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate her 

business, this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance 

Number 2571 shall be automatically repealed. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2571 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of June, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2571



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2571



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2571



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2571



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2571



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     May 4, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0515-21 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a home based business  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4755 Liberty Park Lane, Lot 878 Heritage Hills, Phase 1. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Timothy and Robin York, 4755 Liberty Park Lane, 

Vestavia Hills, AL  35242 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant wishes to conduct a home based 
consulting business in Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a 
conditional use permit is required for a home based business. Applicant indicates that 
only paperwork be done at the residence. Liberty Park has submitted four requested 
conditions: 

 
1. There shall be no customers, client or employee traffic to, at or near the 
residence that is generated, directly or indirectly, by the home occupation; 
2. There shall be no pick-ups or deliveries to the residence that are related, 
directly or indirectly, to the home occupation, including without limitation, pick-
ups and deliveries by overnight courier services and pick-ups and deliveries of 
inventory, samples or other goods and services related, directly or indirectly, to 
the home occupation; 
3. There shall be no signage on the property related, directly or indirectly, to 
the home occupation; and 
4. In all respects, there shall be no means, visual or otherwise, by which a 
casual observer would become aware that the residence is being used for any 
purpose other than strictly residential. 

 
       The property is zoned PR-1. 
 

• LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN:  This request is consistent with the procedures 
of the Liberty Park PUD. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 



 2 

to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the conditions requested by Liberty Park.  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use Approval 
for a home office at 4755 Liberty Park Lane. with the following conditions: 

1. There shall be no customers, client or employee traffic to, at or near the residence that is 
generated, directly or indirectly, by the home occupation; 

2. There shall be no pick-ups or deliveries to the residence that are related, directly or 
indirectly, to the home occupation, including without limitation, pick-ups and deliveries 
by overnight courier services and pick-ups and deliveries of inventory, samples or other 
goods and services related, directly or indirectly, to the home occupation; 

3. There shall be no signage on the property related, directly or indirectly, to the home 
occupation; and 

4. In all respects, there shall be no means, visual or otherwise, by which a casual observer 
would become aware that the residence is being used for any purpose other than strictly 
residential. 

Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Brooks – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes  
 Mr. House – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes 

Mr. Visintainer – yes   Mr. Goodwin – yes   
 Mr. Sharp – yes    Mr. Larson – yes   
 Motion carried. 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2572 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2572 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR AUTOMOTIVE SALES, FOR 1475 MONTGOMERY 
HIGHWAY 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports is the owner of the property 

located at 1475 Montgomery Highway zoned Vestavia Hills B-3 (business district); and 

 WHEREAS, Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports has presented an application 

for Conditional Use Approval for the purpose of automotive sales for the property located 

at 1475 Montgomery Highway pursuant to Table 6 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; 

and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use approval is hereby granted for automotive sales for property 

located at 1475 Montgomery Highway; and 

2. Said conditional use shall continue in perpetuity pursuant to the Zoning Code 

until such time as use ceases to exist on said property for a period of one year; 

and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2572 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of June, 

2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2572 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2572 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of June, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2572



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2572



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2572



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     May 4, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0515-23 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Request of Conditional Use Approval for a vehicle 

dealership 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1475 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  Michael Schefano, Hollywood Imports 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is located on Montgomery Highway adjacent 

to NAPA Auto Parts and Captain D’s.  Property has secured storage for vehicles in 
the rear of a small office and narrows to the front.  Vehicles are parked so as to allow 
ingress/egress of a small amount of traffic.  Customers are not shown vehicles on said 
lot, vehicles are taken to primary lot for viewing and/or financing.  Planned use for 
the immediate future is to only store the surplus vehicle inventory on the lot, 
however, Hollywood Imports is in flooding area and this property would be ideal to 
move temporary operations to if flooding should occur of the dealership continues to 
grow. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  This property is located in Figure 18 

of the Comprehensive Master Plan in an area designated as Commercial Core.  This 
request is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning 
classification with the conditional use.   

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No Recommendation. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application find no problems. 
 



 2 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and found no 
problems as proposed. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and found no 

problems as proposed.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval Operation Of A Vehicle Dealership For The Property Located At 1475 Montgomery 
Highway with the following conditions: 

1. The owner must receive a certificate of occupancy from the Building Safety Department; 
2. Business must adhere to all ADA and building requirements; and 
3. Business must obtain permits for sign and adhere to the sign ordinance. 

Second was by Mr. Wolfe. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Brooks – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes  
 Mr. House – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes 

Mr. Visintainer – yes   Mr. Goodwin – yes   
 Mr. Sharp – yes    Mr. Larson – yes   
 Motion carried. 

 
 



 3 

  


	2015_0608CC_A
	2015_0528CC_M
	Resolution 4716
	Resolution 4718
	Resolution 4719
	Resolution 4720
	Resolution 4724
	Ordinance 2570
	Resolution 4721
	Resolution 4722
	Resolution 4723
	Ordinance 2571

	Ordinance 2572



